


http://www.colfax-ca.gov/






City of Colfax 3 
City Council Minutes February 14, 2018 
 

Lou-anna Robinson, Colfax property owner, asked if the roads will be closed for construction. 
 Engineering staff explained part of the engineering design includes how the stage the 
 construction with as little impact to residents and businesses as possible. 
 

Councilmember Harvey stated he was not initially in favor of a roundabout, but was supportive 
of installing a series of traffic lights.  He now has more information and has changed his stance.  
The roundabout will be a benefit to the community. 
Mayor Stockwin stated this is obviously a complex project.  The City will schedule another public 
meeting in early April.  He thanked the engineering staff for a good presentation. 
 

4 CONSENT CALENDAR 

4A. Minutes - Regular Meeting January 24, 2018 
Recommendation:  Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of January 24, 2018. 

4B. Building Department Report ɀ 2017  
Recommendation:  Receive and file. 

On a motion by Councilmember Harvey, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza, Council 
approved the Consent Calendar. 
AYES:  Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 
 

5 PUBLIC COMMENT 

Clyde Prout, Colfax-Todds Valley Consolidated Tribe President 
¶ Mr. Prout handed out flyers for the first annual Colfax Indian Day event which will be 

held August 25, 2018 at Sierra Vista Community Center. 
 

6 COUNCIL, STAFF, AND OTHER REPORTS 

6A. Committee Reports and Colfax Informational Items ɀ All Councilmembers 
Councilmember Harvey 
¶ Councilmember Harvey represented the City on the Placer County Air Quality 

Board. He stated the board will have funds available to help property owners 
purchase wood stoves that meet new regulations. 

Councilmember Douglass 
¶ Councilmember Douglass attended the City/County OfficialȭÓ Dinner in Lincoln and 

represented the City on the Pioneer Energy Board.  
¶ He and Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza gave a presentation to local seniors regarding the 

roundabout and Pioneer Energy. 
¶ He attended the ceremony awarding Sergeant Ty Conners his 20 year stripe, a 

roundabout public meeting, and the second Wednesday meeting with Supervisor 
Montgomery. 

Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza 
¶ Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza attended the City/County Officials Dinner and the award 

ceremony for Sergeant Conners,  as well as presenting to the seniors. 
¶ She attended the All-Volunteer meeting for coordinating calendars which will be 

posted on the City and Chamber websites. 
¶ Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza announced upcoming school fundraising events:  E-waste 

Pick-up at Sierra Vista Community Center for 6th grade science camp, a Green 
Machine Bingo night at the VFW building this weekend, and the March 10th Green 

































































 

Ordinance 536 Commercial Cannibas Actvity Cover 1  

CITY OF COLFAX 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 536 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF COLFAX ADDING MUNICIPAL CODE 

CHAPTER 5.32 ESTABLISHING COMMERCIAL CANNABIS REGULATIONS 

 

The City Council of the City of Colfax does ordain as follows: 

  

Section 1:  

 

Colfax Municipal Code Chapter 5.32 is hereby added to the Colfax Municipal Code in the form 

and substance contained in the Ordinance attached hereto as Exhibit A which is incorporated 

herein by this reference. 

 

Section 2. Superceding Provisions 

 

The provisions of this Ordinance and any resolution adopted pursuant hereto shall supersede and 

repeal any previous Ordinance or resolution to the extent the same is in conflict herewith.  

 

Section 3. Severability 

 

If any section, phrase, sentence or portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or 

unconstitutional by the final judgment of any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall 

be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision; and such holding shall not affect the 

validity of the remaining portions hereof.  

 

Section 4.  California Environmental Quality Act Findings 

 

The City of Colfax finds that, if the provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act, 

Public Resources Code §21000 et seq (hereinafter "CEQA") apply, the title of this ordinance 

would constitute a brief description of the "Project" as required by Section 15062(a)(1) of the 

Guidelines for Implementation of the California Environmental Quality Act published by the 

State of California Office of Planning and Research (the "CEQA Guidelines"). 

 

FINDING OF NO PROJECT 

 

The City of Colfax finds that adoption of this ordinance does not constitute a "Project" as that 

term is defined by or used in CEQA, the CEQA Guidelines or any court or attorney general 

opinion construing the same.  Accordingly, the City of Colfax finds that the provisions of CEQA 

and the CEQA Guidelines are not applicable to said action. 

 

FINDING OF EXEMPTION 

 

In the event that it is found that the said action constitutes a "Project" as defined by or used in 

CEQA or the CEQA Guidelines, which finding would be contrary to the Cityôs opinion of its 

action, the City of Colfax hereby finds that said action is exempt from compliance with CEQA 

and the CEQA Guidelines, for the following reasons: The action falls within the exemptions 

provided by Senate Bill 94, and within the ñcommon senseò CEQA exemption provided in 14 

CCR 15061(b)(3) in that CEQA applies only to projects which have the potential for causing a 































Ordinance 536 Commercial Cannabis Activity  14  
 

(e) The City Manager or his/her designee(s) is authorized to make all 
decisions concerning the issuance of a renewal permit.  In making the 
decision, the City Manager or his/her designee(s) is authorized to impose 
additional conditions to a renewal permit, if it is determined to be 
necessary to ensure compliance with state or local laws and regulations or 
to preserve the public health, safety or welfare.  Appeals from the decision 
of the City Manager or his/her designee(s) shall be handled pursuant to 
Chapter 5.32.140. 

 
(f) If a renewal application is rejected, a person may file a new application 

pursuant to this Chapter no sooner than one (1) year from the date of the 
rejection. 

 
Section 5.32.130. Effect of State License Suspension, Revocation, or Termination.  
 
Suspension of a license issued by the State of California, or by any of its departments 
or divisions, shall immediately suspend the ability of a commercial cannabis business to 
operate within the City, until the State of California, or its respective department or 
division, reinstates or reissues the State license.  Should the State of California, or any 
of its departments or divisions, revoke or terminate the license of a commercial 
cannabis business, such revocation or termination shall also revoke or terminate the 
ability of a commercial cannabis business to operate within the City of Colfax. 
 
Section 5.32.140.  Appeals  
 
Unless specifically provided elsewhere to the contrary, whenever an appeal is provided 
for in this Chapter from a decision of the City Manager or his/her designee(s), the 
appeal shall be conducted as prescribed in this Chapter.   
 
Section 5.32.150.  Written request for Appeal.   
 

(a) Within ten (10) calendar days after the date of a decision of the City 
Manager or his/her designee(s) to revoke, suspend or deny a permit, or to 
add conditions to a permit, an aggrieved party may appeal such action by 
filing a written appeal with the City Clerk setting forth the reasons why the 
decision was not proper.   

 
(b) At the time of filing the appellant shall pay the designated appeal fee, 

established by resolution of the City Council from time to time.  
 
Section 5.32.160.  Appeal Hearing.   
 

(a) Upon receipt of the written appeal, the City Clerk shall set the matter for a 
hearing before the City Council. The City Council shall hear the matter de 
novo, and shall conduct the hearing pursuant to the procedures set forth 
by the City.   

ITEM 5A



















Ordinance 536 Commercial Cannabis Activity  23  
 

of any crime found to have occurred on the site of the commercial 
cannabis business.  

 
(5) Sensors shall be installed to detect entry and exit from all secure 

areas. 
 

(6) Panic buttons shall be installed in all commercial cannabis 
businesses. 

 
(7) Having a professionally installed, maintained, and monitored alarm 

system. 
 

(8) Any bars installed on the windows or the doors of the commercial 
cannabis business shall be installed only on the interior of the 
building. 

 
(9) Security personnel shall be on-site 24 hours a day or alternative 

security as authorized by the City Manager or his/her designee(s). 
Security personnel must be licensed by the State of California 
Bureau of Security and Investigative Services personnel and shall 
be subject to the prior review and approval of the City Manager or 
his/her designee(s), with such approval not to be unreasonably 
withheld. 

 
(10) Each commercial cannabis business shall have the capability to 

remain secure during a power outage and shall ensure that all 
access doors are not solely controlled by an electronic access 
panel to ensure that locks are not released during a power outage. 

 
(b) Each commercial cannabis business shall identify a designated security 

representative/liaison to the City of Colfax, who shall be reasonably 
available to meet with the City Manager or his/her designee(s) regarding 
any security related measures or and operational issues. 

 
(c) As part of the application and permitting process each commercial 

cannabis business shall have a storage and transportation plan, which 
describes in detail the procedures for safely and securely storing and 
transporting all cannabis, cannabis products, and any currency.   

 
(d) The commercial cannabis business shall cooperate with the City 

whenever the City Manager or his/her designee(s) makes a request, upon 
reasonable notice to the commercial cannabis business, to inspect or 
audit the effectiveness of any security plan or of any other requirement of 
this Chapter. 

 

































http://qcode.us/codes/placercounty/view.php?topic=8-8_10-8_10_010&frames=on






































City of Colfax 
City Council 

 
Resolution Ο 11-2018 

 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A MASTER AGREEMENT 
ADMINISTERING AGENCY-STATE AGREEMENTS FOR FEDERAL-AID 

PROJECTS, A PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT AGREEMENT, AND FINANCE LETTERS 
FOR THE S. AUBURN STREET AND I-80 ROUNDABOUT PROJECT. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Colfax is eligible to receive State and/or Federal funding for certain 
transportation projects through the State of California, Department of Transportation; and  
 
WHEREAS, agreements and finance letters must be executed with the State of California, 
Department of Transportation to receive State or Federal transportation funds; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Colfax desires to enter into an agreement with the State of California, 
Department of Transportation to allow the City to make use of State administered funds for 
transportation projects; and, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Colfax authorizes 
the City Manager to execute: Federal Master Agreement No. 03-5187F15 for Federal-Aid 
projects; and Program Supplement Agreement No. 003-F and associated Finance Letters for 
the S. Auburn Street and I-80 Roundabout Project.  
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at the Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held 
on the 28th day of February 2018 by the following vote of the Council: 
 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

______________________________________ 
        Will Stockwin, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

____________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 





















































































































































http://www.colfax-ca.gov/












mailto:Wes.Heathcock@colfax-ca.gov


City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution Ο 13-2018 
 

ESTABLISHING AND ADOPTING FEES TO PROCESS APPLICATIONS FOR 
COMMERCIAL CANNABIS ACTIVITY PERMITS 

 

WHEREAS, on February 28, 2018, the City Council of the City of Colfax adopted Ordinance No. 
536 adding #ÈÁÐÔÅÒ υȢσς Ȱ#ÏÍÍÅÒÃÉÁÌ #ÁÎÎÁÂÉÓ !ÃÔÉÖÉÔÙȱ ÔÏ ÔÈÅ #ÏÌÆÁØ -ÕÎÉÃÉÐÁÌ #ÏÄÅ ɉȰ#-#ȱɊ ɉÔÈÅ 
Ȱ#ÏÍÍÅÒÃÉÁÌ #ÁÎÎÁÂÉÓ /ÒÄÉÎÁÎÃÅȱɊȠ ÁÎÄ 

 

WHEREAS, the Commercial Cannabis Ordinance takes effect on March 30, 2018; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City retained HDL Companies to assist with establishing the commercial 
cannabis business permit application process; and 

 

WHEREAS, the commercial cannabis business permit application process will consist of 
various phases of review, with applicants advancing to a subsequent phase of review only after 
satisfying the requirements of the prior phase of review; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to adopt fees for each phase of review and for other related 
costs in order for the City to recover the costs of administering the commercial cannabis business 
permit application process; and 

 

WHEREAS, City staff, with the assistance of HDL Companies, conducted a fee study to 
determine the cost of administering each phase of the commercial cannabis business permit 
application process; and 

 

WHEREAS, the fees established by this resolution are fair and reasonable and are equal to, or less 
than, the cost to the City to implement and administer the commercial cannabis business permit 
application process. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Colfax as follows: 
1.  The foregoing recitals are true and correct statements of fact and are incorporated into this 

Resolution by this reference. 
2.  The City Council hereby approves and adopts the fees reflected in the fee schedule attached to 

this Resolution to implement and administer the commercial cannabis business permit application process. 
 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at the Regular 
Meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 28th day of February 2018 by the following 
vote of the Council: 
 

AYES:    

NOES:    

ABSTAIN:   

ABSENT:       ____________________________________ 
        Will Stockwin, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

________________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 



















 

CITY OF COLFAX 
Commercial Cannabis Business  

Employee/Owner Background Information 
 

Page 2 of 2 

33 S. Main Street 
Colfax, CA 95713 
(530) 346-2313 

ADDITIONAL ARREST INFORMATION 

 

ARREST DATE ARRESTING AGENCY / LOCATION / COURT NAME 
CHARGE / REASON FOR 
ARREST 

   

DISPOSITION (WHAT WAS THE OUTCOME OF THE CASE: Were you sentenced?  Did you have to pay a fine? Probation? Parole? Etc.) 

 

 

ARREST DATE ARRESTING AGENCY / LOCATION / COURT NAME 
CHARGE / REASON FOR 
ARREST 

   

DISPOSITION (WHAT WAS THE OUTCOME OF THE CASE: Were you sentenced?  Did you have to pay a fine? Probation? Parole? Etc.) 

 

 

ARREST DATE ARRESTING AGENCY / LOCATION / COURT NAME 
CHARGE / REASON FOR 
ARREST 

   

DISPOSITION (WHAT WAS THE OUTCOME OF THE CASE: Were you sentenced?  Did you have to pay a fine? Probation? Parole? Etc.) 

 

LIST ALL REGULATED ONLY COMMERCIAL CANNABIS EMPLOYMENT HISTORY 

BUSINESS NAME CITY / STATE PHONE START DATE END DATE 

     

     

BACKGROUND INVESTIGATION RELEASE 

To Whom It May Concern: 
 
I am an applicant/employee with a Commercial Cannabis Business in the City.  I desire and request the City Manager 
of the City of Colfax, Sheriff and/or his/her agents, employee or lawful representative(s) to take my photograph and 
fingerprints or use the information in this application for the purpose of conducting a background check to verify that I 
meet the qualifications required to obtain a Commercial Cannabis Business Permit to operate or to be employed with 
such business as required by the City Municipal Code and/or State Law.  
 
I agree to provide any information requested or deemed necessary to provide the State of California Department of 
Justice and the Federal Bureau Investigation, or any other law enforcement agency or third-party consultant authorized 
by the City Manager or Sheriff. 
 
I understand this will serve to disclose any record of arrests to which I have been the subject that resulted in conviction.  
I further agree to hold the City of Colfax, its officers, agents, or lawfully delegated representatives, harmless from any 
action(s), or damages whatsoever or at all, which may result from the taking of such fingerprints or forwarding them to 
the appropriate law enforcement agency for a recordôs check and/or obtaining access to any other documentation which 
pertains to meeting the qualification for a Commercial Cannabis Business Permit or Employee Permit. 
 
Furthermore, I hereby authorize the City Manager or Sheriff and/or his/her agents, employee or lawful representative(s) 
to obtain and review my consumer credit report and/or any other credit related information pertaining to me. I hereby 
confirm I have received a copy of my consumer rights.  
 
By signing this form, I acknowledge and agree to comply with all the conditions and terms of this application.  I also 
understand that falsifying and/or omitting any information on this application may be grounds for denial of a permit or is 
grounds for termination of employment per the Colfax Ordinance.  

APPLICANTôS SIGNATURE DATE PERSON REVIEWING APPLICATION: DATE 

    

 

















3 

 

¶ Planning and development activities have increased which results in a higher projection for both 
revenue and expenses in this category. 

¶ The City has incurred some additional legal expenses related to employment and union disputes. 

¶ The City sold some miscellaneous equipment for a total of approximately $16,000 

¶ We received an adjustment from the State as part of our grant funding for public safety in the 
amount of $39,000 which results in less allocation from the General Fund for our Sheriff Contract.  
The total cost of the Sheriff contract is not changed ς the adjustment increases revenues and 
expenses in the Special Revenue Fund. 

 
Special Revenues & Capital Projects 
The chart below summarizes the Net Change from last Adopted Budget to the current Estimated Actuals in 
Revenue and Expenses by the major categories. 
 

   
 

¶ The City actual allocation for State Transit Assistance and Local Transportation Funds, which are 
allocated through PCTPA, is higher than originally estimated.  This increase in revenues reduces the 
amount of General Funds that are allocated to Streets & Roads Expenditures (note change in 
Transfers for both General Fund and Special Revenue Funds). 

¶ We received an adjustment from the State as part of our grant funding for public safety in the 
amount of $39,000 which results in less allocation from the General Fund for our Sheriff Contract.  
The total cost of Sheriff contract is not changed ς the adjustment increases revenues and expenses 
in the Special Revenue Fund. 

¶ Mitigation Fee project expenses are projected to be lower than budgeted.  This is a timing 
difference between fiscal years and not a reduction in total project costs.   

 
Enterprise Funds 
The chart below summarizes the Net Change from last Adopted Budget to the current Estimated Actuals in 
Revenue and Expenses by the major categories. 
 

   
 

¶ Revenue projections have been reviewed and adjusted based on year to date actuals.  The increase 
in interest is due to higher interest rates being earned and higher fund balances.   








	00A 180228 Agenda
	02A 180214 Minutes
	02B Cash Summary January 2018
	2018-07 Staff Report Cash Summary Jan 2018
	180228 Cash Summary Data January 2018

	02C First Amendment Village Oaks
	SR 1st amendment to the reimbursement agreement 2-28-18
	Resolution 09-2018 Village Oaks Amendment
	180223eh_Amendment 1 Final

	02D Staffing Amendment
	180228 SR Revise Accounting Position
	Resolution 10-2018 Staffing Adjustments - Accounting
	Accounting Technician Job Description
	MOU Salary Schedule February 2018

	05A Ordinance 536 Cannabis
	180228 SR Hdl Commercial Cannabis 536
	180130dh_Ordinance Ch 536 Cover
	180131ah_Ordinance HDL Final

	05B Ordinance 535 Cannabis Chapter 17
	180224 SR Cannabis Ch 17.2 Amendment 535
	180130bh_Ordinance Ch 17 Cover
	180129hh_Ordinance Ch 17 Rev1

	06A Roundabout Funding
	Staff Report - Master Agreement  Program Supplement Agreement Feb 28 2018
	Resolution 11-2018 Roundabout Finance Agreements
	Attachment 2 - Master Agreement Administering Agency-State Agreement for Federal Aid Projects
	Attachment 3 - Program Supplement Agreement 003-F

	06B Cannabis Applications
	01 180228 SR Cannabis Regulations
	02 Resolution 12-2018 Cannabis Application Procedures
	03 180228 Colfax Application Procedure Guideline
	04 Resolution 13-2018 Cannabis Fees
	05 Fee Schedule
	05a Live Scan and Zoning Letter Fee Analysis
	06 Phase 1 Cost Recovery Analysis
	07 Phase 2 Cost Recovery Analysis
	08 Phase 3 Cost Recovery Analysis
	09 Phase 4 Cost Recovery Analysis
	10 Resolution 14-2018 Cannabis Background Check
	11 Colfax Background Application
	12 Colfax Limitations on CIty's Liability

	06C Call for Election
	180228 SR Call for Elections
	Resolution 15-2018 Call for Elections 

	06D Mid-year Budget Review
	Staff Report - Mid Year Review Feb 2018
	Summary by fund
	Calendar




